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WEEK IN REVIEW

HOUSE

The House of Representatives amended and gave second reading to H.3159, a bill revising the CONDITIONS DETERMINING WHEN CERTAIN CRIMINAL OFFENDERS MAY VOTE.  Currently, a person is disqualified from being registered or voting, if he/she is convicted of a felony or offenses against the election laws, unless the disqualification has been removed by service of the sentence, including probation and parole time unless sooner pardoned. Under the bill, as amended, a person is disqualified from being registered or voting if he/she: (1) is convicted of a violent crime or offenses against the election laws, unless the disqualification has been removed by pardon, or (2) is convicted of any other felony unless the disqualification has been removed by pardon or fifteen years or more have passed after the completion date of service of the sentence, including probation and parole time.
The House approved and sent to the Senate H.3142, a bill revising enforcement of South Carolina’s RIGHT TO WORK LAWS which prohibit practices that have the effect of making employment contingent upon whether or not an employee is affiliated with a labor union or organization.  The bill broadens the investigatory powers of the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation (LLR) in disputes arising from alleged violations of the Right to Work laws.  In the course of investigating claims, the Director of the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation is authorized to hold hearings and enter a workplace in order to evaluate compliance.  The Director is authorized to assess a violator a civil penalty of not more than one hundred dollars for each offense.  The bill makes several amendments to penalty provisions and broadens the scope of persons prohibited from participating in unlawful labor agreements that violate an employee’s right to work by allowing for penalties and/or causes of action against any person for violations of the chapter.  Current law allows for such actions to be taken against employers, only.  The legislation also creates a private cause of action under which a person who has been denied employment or deprived of continued employment through force, intimidation, obstruction, interference, or through other means in violation of the State’s Right to Work provisions is entitled to recover from the employer actual damages as well as punitive damages awarded at the discretion of the court or jury.

The House approved S.115 and ordered the bill enrolled for ratification.  The bill provides a third option for LICENSURE OF COIN-OPERATED MACHINES AND DEVICES including such amusements as video games, kid rides, air hockey, juke boxes, and pin ball machines.  This bill revises licensure provisions for coin-operated machines and devices and other amusements by adding an option to purchase an eight-month license in lieu of a twenty-four-month or six-month license.  The bill provides that a person may be granted a nonrefundable license beginning March first and to expire October thirtieth, following the date of issue, which may not be prorated.  The fee for this eight‑month license is one‑third the biennial license fee.  The new option is offered to better accommodate the beach tourism season that has expanded well beyond the summer months.

The House amended, approved, and sent to the Senate H.3304, a bill enacting “THE UNIFORM ATHLETE AGENTS ACT OF 2001.”  This bill outlines procedures for applications, registration and renewal of registration for athlete agents.  The bill provides for service of process upon individuals acting as athlete agents in this state.  The bill outlines the duties of the Secretary of State relating to applications for registration and issuance of temporary certificates and certificates of registration to athlete agents and for the non-renewal, suspension and revocation of certificates of registration after notice and opportunity for a hearing.  The bill provides that the fee for an application for renewal would be three hundred dollars and the initial application fee would be five hundred dollars.  Additionally, H.3304 outlines what an agency contract must state or contain, and the bill requires a warning to student athletes of certain rights and consequences of signing an agency contract.  This bill outlines circumstances when an agency contract is voidable and when a student athlete may cancel an agency contract.  This bill requires an athlete agent to retain certain records for five years, and the bill provides for the inspection of those records.  Under this bill, an athlete agent may not make certain representations or furnish anything of value to student athletes with the intent to induce a student athlete to enter into an agency contract.  This bill provides that an educational institution has a right of action against an athlete agent or former student athlete for damages caused by a violation of this legislation.  As amended, the bill provides that an athlete agent who violates these provisions is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, is punishable by a fine of not more than ten thousand dollars or imprisonment for not more than three years, or both.  The legislation provides that upon a finding that an athlete agent has violated any provision of this legislation, as determined from admissions of the athlete agent freely and voluntarily made or as of the result of a hearing conducted pursuant to the Administrative Procedures Act, the Secretary of State may assess a fine against an athlete agent not to exceed one hundred thousand dollars.

The House amended, approved, and sent to the Senate H.3259, a bill pertaining to PUSH-POLLING.  As introduced, this bill defined and provided regulations for a push-poll.  Under the bill, as amended, a push-poll is defined as a paid telephone survey supporting or opposing any candidate for public office and conducted by or on behalf of a candidate or committee that (1) asks questions or gives statements relating to candidates for public office that state, imply, or convey information about another candidate’s character, status, or political stance or record, and (2) is conducted in a manner that is likely to be construed by the person receiving the call to be a survey or poll which uses an established method of scientific sampling and gather statistical data for entities or organizations that are acting independently of any political party, candidate, or interest group.  The bill requires the person conducting the push poll at the beginning of the call to disclose the name of the candidate or committee that paid for, sponsored, donated, or authorized the call.  If the call is an independent expenditure, the disclosure must also state that no candidate has approved the call.  The bill prohibits a person or organization from stating or falsely implying fictitious names or telephone numbers when providing the required disclosures.  The bill requires the entity in charge of conducting a push-poll to file (1) the name, telephone number, and address of the candidate or committee who paid for, sponsored, donated, or authorized the poll, and (2) the text of the poll with the State Ethics Commission and also with the candidates or campaigns involved twenty-four hours before the poll is initiated.  If a committee or entity has paid for, sponsored, donated, or authorized the poll, it must also file the names of the members of its governing board, board of directors, or executive committee. A person who violates the provisions of this bill is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, must be fined not more than five thousand dollars or be imprisoned not more than one year, or both.

The House amended, approved, and sent to the Senate H.3288, a bill pertaining to the licensure and regulation of the MANUFACTURED HOUSING BUSINESS.  This bill conforms provisions relating to the Manufactured Housing Board to the statutory organizational framework established for boards under the administration of the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation.  The bill also provides for other substantive changes.  The legislation reduces from five to two the number of manufactured homes that may be sold without a license.  The Manufactured Housing Board is authorized to contract out for examination services for applicants for licensure.  The bill provides that the licensure cycle is to be biennial rather than annual.  The legislation requires training for manufactured housing dealers.  The bill increases the amount of the bond required of dealers from $15,000 to $30,000, and the amount of the bond required of manufactured home retail salesmen from $10,000 to $15,000.  Local jurisdictions are authorized to charge installation fees in an amount up to $100.  The legislation limits the number of sales from repossession by financial organizations that may be conducted without the use of a manufactured housing dealer.

The House approved and sent to the Senate H.3360, as amended. This legislation transfers administrative control of the state’s MORTGAGE LOAN BROKERS from the Department of Consumer Affairs to the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation (LLR).  The bill establishes under LLR the South Carolina Board of Mortgage Loan Brokers, composed of four mortgage loan brokers (each of whom must have five years or more experience and hold a valid license), one realtor who is a real estate broker or real estate appraiser, one representative of a financial institution, and one member of the public.  All members of the board are appointed by the Governor, and terms of service for board members are provided.  The legislation provides for other revisions such as converting compliance with fee payment and continuing education requirements from an annual to a biennial schedule.  The bill requires companies to be registered and brokers to be licensed, as opposed to the current system under which a company is licensed and the broker and employees are registered under the company.  The bill provides that each mortgage loan brokerage office must employ a licensed broker.  Current law only requires one broker per company, which might have offices in multiple locations.  The House approved an amendment that provides that if a person files a written complaint with the board or the director charging a broker with a violation, the director must examine the books, records, and other pertinent documents to determine if the broker has been in substantial compliance with the law.  The House also approved an amendment that provides that the Director of LLR or his appointed designee within the department shall examine, on an unannounced basis, not less frequently than every two years the books, records, and other pertinent documents to determine if the broker has been in substantial compliance with the law.

The House amended, gave third reading H.3042, pertaining to ALCOHOL SALES, and ordered the bill sent to the Senate.  This bill requires an applicant for (1) a permit to sell beer and wine or (2) a minibottle license to furnish certification from the municipality or county in which the business is to be conducted that the applicant is in compliance with all applicable zoning and land use ordinances and regulations of that jurisdiction.

The House approved and sent to the Senate H.3124, a bill that establishes an additional option for becoming licensed as a COMMUNITY RESIDENTIAL CARE FACILITY ADMINISTRATOR.   This bill revises licensure requirements for community residential care facility administrators, so as to allow issuance of a license based on a combination of education and experience as established in regulation by the South Carolina Board of Long Term Health Care Administrators.

The House approved and sent to the Senate H.3380, a bill revising definitions concerning BUNGEE JUMPING so as to include in the regulation of bungee jumping devices in which the bungee cord is a wire rope, cable, spring, or other device similar in design or use.  The legislation responds to the amusement trend of reverse bungee jumping.

The House approved and sent to the Senate Joint Resolution H.3546 which revises a previous joint resolution creating a LOCAL JAIL TASK FORCE to identify and study the problems confronting local jails.  The legislation extend the life of the task force to February 1, 2002, before which date it must make its report, and provides that a person appointed to the task force before February 1, 2001, shall remain on the task force.

The House approved and sent to the Senate H.3237, a bill pertaining to the use of BREAM AS BAIT ON TROTLINES. This bill removes the prohibition on the use of bream as bait on certain trotlines after June 30, 2001, on the Edisto, Black, Sampit, Big Pee Dee, Little Pee Dee, Lumber, and Waccamaw Rivers.  The bill removes another prohibition on the use of bream as bait on certain trotlines after June 30, 2001, on the Black, Big Pee Dee, Little Pee Dee, Lumber, and Waccamaw Rivers.

The House amended, approved and sent to the Senate H.3173, a bill establishing a NO WAKE ZONE ON A PORTION OF THE COOPER RIVER.  As amended, the legislation establishes a no wake zone on a portion of the Cooper River lying between Bushy Park and Moncks Corner, beginning at channel marker 13 near or in the vicinity of Pimlico Plantation and running to the water check station near or in the vicinity of Bluff Plantation.

The House approved and sent to the Senate H.3559, a bill relating to seasons, take and size limits, and times for TAKING SHAD, herring, and sturgeon.  The bill changes the times for taking shad during shad season in a portion of the Winyah Bay Drainage System from 7:00 a.m. Tuesday to Monday noon and in a portion of the Santee River below U.S. Highway 41 Bridge seaward from Tuesday noon to Saturday noon to Monday noon to Saturday noon.

SENATE

S.75, pertaining to JURY DUTY, received third reading from the Senate and was ordered sent to the House.  Current law allows any woman having a child less than seven years of age of whom she has legal custody and the duty of care to be excused from jury duty.  This bill expands this exemption to include any parent or legal guardian with legal custody and the duty of care of a child less than seven years of age.  

S.207 was read for the third time and ordered sent to the House.  S.207 relates to the SPEEDY DISPOSITION OF CIVIL CASES.  Act 418 of 2000 established a task force to study, make recommendations, and report to the General Assembly on the statutory and constitutional ramifications of various methods for improving and ensuring the speedy disposition of civil cases in circuit courts and magistrates courts.  Act 418 required the task force submit its report to the General Assembly no later than January 18, 2001 and specified that the task force would be dissolved at that time.  The task forced dissolved, but due to scheduling conflicts the task force did not have an opportunity to meet.  S.207 is a joint resolution that reestablishes the task force with the same members as were previously appointed by Act 418.

The Senate gave third reading to S.233 and ordered the bill sent to the House.  Under this bill, the presumed, inferred, or alleged legal father would be allowed to initiate an action to establish PATERNITY.

S.235 also received third reading and was ordered sent to the House.  Current law allows all or any part of a MEETING OF A PUBLIC BODY to be recorded by any person in attendance by means of a tape recorder or any other means of sonic reproduction, except when a meeting is closed.  This bill would allow individuals to videotape the meeting.

The Senate gave third reading to S.220, which pertains to the SETOFF OF DEBT AGAINST TAXPAYER’S REFUND, and ordered the bill sent to the House.  This joint resolution provides that notwithstanding the appeals procedure provided in the Setoff Debt Collection Act, the appeal procedure for actions of the IRS in connection with debt setoffs is governed by Title 26 of the United States Code (the Internal Revenue Code).  The bill provides that this provision applies to the 2001 filing period for individual income taxes.

S.158 was read for the third time and ordered sent to the House.  This bill prohibits a male eighteen years of age or older from obtaining state government employment or employment with a political subdivision of the state unless the person is in COMPLIANCE WITH THE FEDERAL MILITARY SELECTIVE SERVICE ACT.  The bill also prohibits an individual from receiving a loan, grant, scholarship, or other financial assistance funded by state revenue, or from receiving a student loan guaranteed by this state, unless the individual files a statement of the individual’s selective service status as provided in the bill.  The bill provides exceptions to this prohibition and requires the Commission on Higher Education to promulgate regulations to implement and administer this provision.

S.198, pertaining to the RATIFICATION OF A CAR TAX AMENDMENT, received third reading and was ordered sent to the House.  This bill ratifies an amendment to the S.C. Constitution, approved by the voters in November 2000, which provides that the governing body of a county may, by ordinance and pursuant to a referendum, impose a sales and use tax in order to exempt all or a portion of the value of certain specified vehicles from property taxes levied in the county.

S.199, also pertaining to the RATIFICATION OF A CAR TAX AMENDMENT, received third reading and was ordered sent to the House.  This bill ratifies an amendment to the S.C. Constitution, approved by the voters in November 2000, which provides that the percentage of fair market value of passenger motor vehicles and pickup trucks by which the vehicle is assessed for purposes of property tax, must be incrementally reduced from 9.75% to 6% over a six year period. 

HOUSE COMMITTEE ACTION

AGRICULTURE, NATURAL RESOURCES, AND

 ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS

The full Agriculture, Natural Resources and Environmental Affairs Committee did not meet this week.

EDUCATION AND PUBLIC WORKS

The full Education and Public Works Committee gave a report of favorable with amendment to H.3174, which establishes “SOUTH CAROLINA HOME SCHOOL AWARENESS WEEK,” in recognition of the South Carolina families who educate their children at home as provided by law.

AS INTRODUCED, H.3174 establishes this special week, to be observed each year concurrent with “National Home Educators’ Week,” and provides that during this week, all home school students and their parents, guardians, and teachers shall have free admission to all parks, museums, science centers, planetariums, and educational facilities owned or under the control of the State.  The bill as introduced also provides that these same facilities (not including public school facilities) which are owned or under the control of a local entity may also provide free admissions during this week.

AS AMENDED by the committee, the bill establishes “South Carolina Home School Awareness Week” to be observed each year the first full week in October, with no requirement that the week be observed concurrent with “National Home Educators’ Week.”  The committee also amended the bill so as to provide that during this week, all home school students in this State and their parents or guardians who serve as their teachers shall be provided the same admission opportunities to any educational facilities owned by or under the control of the State or any state agency, department, or institution as are provided to public or private school students and their teachers; and educational facilities (not including public school facilities) owned or under the control of a local political subdivision or entity also shall provide the same admission opportunities as are provided to public or private school students and their teachers.

The committee gave a favorable recommendation to H.3085, which provides for DUCKS UNLIMITED SPECIAL LICENSE PLATES.  

The committee gave a favorable recommendation to H.3098, which provides that PURPLE HEART RECIPIENTS may be issued no more than two permanent special license plates.  Currently, Purple Heart recipients may be issued only one such plate. 

The committee reported favorable with amendment on H.3146.  AS INTRODUCED,  this bill adds provisions to the law creating SPECIAL FINES WHICH MAY BE IMPOSED AGAINST A PERSON VIOLATING SPEED LIMITS ESTABLISHED IN ZONES WHERE THE POSTED MAXIMUM SPEED LIMIT IS AT LEAST FIFTY-FIVE MILES PER HOUR, WHILE DRIVING A COMMERCIAL VEHICLE which requires the driver to possess a commercial driver’s license.  The bill provides that such a person is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction for a first offense, must be fined as follows: in excess of the posted limit but not in excess of ten miles an hour – a fine of not less than twenty dollars nor more than thirty-five dollars; in excess of ten miles an hour but less than fifteen miles an hour above the posted limit – a fine of not less than seventy-five dollars, nor more than one hundred twenty-five dollars;  in excess of twenty miles an hour above the posted limit – a fine of not less than one hundred twenty-five dollars, nor more than three hundred dollars or imprisonment for not more than thirty days, and lose his privilege to drive for six months.  The bill provides that these penalties are in lieu of any other penalties imposed upon a driver of a commercial motor vehicle exceeding the speed limit in a zone where the maximum speed limit is fifty-five miles an hour.

AS AMENDED by the committee, H.3146 clarifies the definition of a “commercial vehicle,” for purposes of the bill, to mean a motor vehicle designed or used to transport passengers or property if the vehicle has a gross vehicle weight rating of twenty-six thousand one or more pounds; is designed to transport sixteen or more persons, including the driver; or is transporting hazardous materials and is required to be placarded in accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations.  The committee also amended the bill so as to provide that a person convicted under the provisions of this bill for a first offense of driving in excess of twenty miles an hour above the posted limit must be fined not less than one hundred twenty-five dollars nor more than three hundred dollars or imprisoned for not more than thirty days, and be disqualified for six months from driving a commercial motor vehicle.

JUDICIARY 

On January 30, the Judiciary Committee gave a favorable report with amendment to H.3042.  This bill relates to ALCOHOL SALES.  For a summary of the bill as it was passed by the House, please see the Week in Review, House Floor portion of this week’s Legislative Update.

On February 6, H.3131 received a favorable recommendation with amendment from the Judiciary Committee.  As introduced, this bill only increased the statute of limitations for commencing an action for ASSAULT AND BATTERY from two to three years.  

The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment to H.3131 provides that an ACTION TO RECOVER DAMAGES FOR INJURY TO A PERSON ARISING OUT OF AN ACT OF SEXUAL ABUSE OR INCEST must be commenced within six years from the time of discovery by the person of the injury and the causal relationship between the injury and the sexual abuse or incest, whichever occurs later.  The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment also provides that parental immunity is not a defense against claims based on sexual abuse or incest that occurred before, on, or after the effective date of this legislation.  Notwithstanding any other provision of law, under the Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment a person who before this legislation’s effective date filed an action to recover damages for injury arising out of sexual abuse or incest which was barred for failure to bring the action within the time required by the statue of limitations in effect at that time has three years from this legislation’s effective date to bring an action based on that abuse or incest subject to the new statute of limitations

The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment to H.3131 also provides that an action for damages under the SOUTH CAROLINA TORT CLAIMS ACT may be instituted at any time within three years after the loss was or should have been discovered.  Current law provides for a two-year statute of limitations.  Current law also provides that if a claim for damages was filed and disallowed or rejected and action for damages filed under the South Carolina Tort Claims Act, based upon the same occurrence as the claim, may be instituted within three years after the loss was or should have been discovered.  The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment deletes this provision.

H.3144, a bill that amends the State Ethics Act, received a favorable recommendation with amendment from the Judiciary Committee.  Many of the amendments pertain to CAMPAIGN FINANCE REFORM.  Highlights of the legislation are listed below; please not e that the Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendments are in bold type.


This bill extends the deadline in which lobbyists and lobbyist principals must report any lobbying activity not reflected on the October tenth report and not reported on a statement of termination from December thirty-first to January tenth of the succeeding year.  Additionally, this bill extends the deadline for submission of each state agency or state department’s lobbying during a particular filing period from the first of the month to the tenth of the month.  Under the bill, the filing periods are from January first to March thirty-first for the April tenth report and from April first to September thirtieth for the October tenth report.  The bill further provides that any lobbying activity not reflected on the October tenth report and not on a statement of termination must not be reported any later than January tenth of the succeeding year.

If required reports are not filed within five days of due date, current law provides that an individual (1) must pay a $100 penalty, and (2) must pay a fine of $10 for each calendar day in which the required statement is not filed.  Additionally, current law provides that the $10 daily fine may not exceed $500; this bill eliminates the $500 cap on civil penalties for failure to file required reports.

Also, this bill creates a new penalty for failure to file required reports or other reporting violations.  Current law provides for a penalty of not less than $5,000, or imprisonment for not more than five years, or both.  In addition to current law, H.3144 adds a fine of up to 500% of the amount that should have been reported.


For purposes of determining who has to file disclosure reports, this bill expands the definition of the term “influence the outcome of an elective office” so as to include express words advocating the election or defeat of candidates [i.e. “vote for” “elect” “defeat.”]  The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment further expands the definition of “influence the outcome of an elective office” so as to also include communicating campaign slogans or individual words that, taken in context, have no other reasonable meaning other than to urge the election or defeat of a clearly identified candidate including or substantially similar to slogans or words such as “Smith’s the One,” “Jones 2000,” “Smith/Jones,” “Jones!” or “Smith-A man for the People!”

This bill provides the House and Senate Ethics Committees with jurisdiction to impose penalties against legislative caucus committees that violate ethics laws.

Under this bill, the term “ballot measure committee” is defined as 

(a)
an association, club, an organization, or a group of persons which, to influence the outcome of a ballot measure, receives contributions or makes expenditures in excess of $1,000 in the aggregate during an election cycle;  The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment changes this amount from $1,000 to $500. 

(b)
a person, other than an individual, who, to influence the outcome of a ballot measure makes contributions aggregating at least $50,000 during an election cycle to, or at least at the request of, a ballot measure committee; or

(c)
a person, other than an individual, who makes independent expenditures aggregating $1,000 or more during an election cycle


The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment changes this amount from $1,000 to $500.

This bill requires a ballot measure committee, except an out‑of‑state committee, which receives or expends more than $1,000 in the aggregate during an election cycle to influence the outcome of a ballot measure to file a statement of organization.  The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment changes this amount from $1,000 to $500.  The statement of organization must be filed with the State Ethics Commission no later than five days after the ballot measure committee receives the contribution or makes the expenditure.  Also, this bill requires an out‑of‑state ballot measure committee that expends more than $1,000 in the aggregate during an election cycle to influence the outcome of a ballot measure to file a statement of organization with the State Ethics Commission no later than five days after making the expenditure.  The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment changes this amount from $1,000 to $500.

This bill prohibits a political party through its party committee or legislative caucus committee from giving a candidate contributions which total in the aggregate more than (1) $50,000 in the case of a candidate for a statewide office; and (2) $5,000 in the case of a candidate for any other office.  The recipient of a contribution given in violation of this legislation may not keep the contribution and must, within 10 days, remit the contribution to the Children’s Trust Fund.


This bill eliminates the requirement that campaign reports must be sent to the State Election Commission; also, the bill eliminates the State Election Commission as the location for public availability of certified campaign reports.  Additionally, this bill substitutes the State Ethics Commission for the State Election Commission as the agency responsible for determining errors or omissions on campaign reports.


Notwithstanding any other reporting requirements, under the Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment a political party, legislative caucus committee, and a party committee must file a certified campaign report upon the receipt of anything of value which total in the aggregate more than $500.  The term “anything of value” includes contributions which may be used for the payment of operation expenses of a political party, legislative caucus committee, or a party committee.  The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment requires a political party to comply with other reporting requirements in the same manner as a candidate or committee.

Under the Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment, invitations may be extended at national and regional conventions and conferences by lobbyist principals to all members of the General Assembly in attendance.

The Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment to the bill includes a severability clause.
The Judiciary Committee adjourned debate on H.3212.  As introduced, this bill requires a REFERENDUM ON THE QUESTION OF RAISING THE BONDED INDEBTEDNESS LIMIT OF A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OR SCHOOL DISTRICT.  The referendum must be held at the general election, and the question must be certified to the appropriate election commission at least forty-five days before the date of the general election. 

H.3380 received a favorable report from the Judiciary Committee.  This bill relates to definitions concerning BUNGEE JUMPING so as to include in the regulation of bungee jumping devices in which the bungee cord is a wire rope, cable, spring, or other device similar in design or use.

The full Judiciary Committee adjourned debate on H.3160.  This bill revises the circumstances upon which an INTERPRETER is appointed in a criminal or civil proceeding.  Under this bill, whenever a principal party in interest or witness to a civil legal proceeding does not sufficiently understand or speak the English language to comprehend the proceeding or testify, the appointing authority must appoint a certified or otherwise qualified interpreter to interpret the proceedings to the principal party in interest and the testimony of the witness.  The term “appointing authority” means a trial judge, administrative hearing officer, or another officer authorized by law to conduct a judicial or quasi-judicial proceeding.  Additionally, the bill requires the Division of Court Administration to appoint a Court Interpreters Advisory Panel to assist the State Supreme Court and the Division of Court Administration in developing policies that include a code of professional responsibility for interpreters, interpreter training, continuing education, and recruitment of interpreters.

The Judiciary Committee gave a favorable report with amendment to H.3100, a bill that relates to MOTOR VEHICLE REPAIRS.  However, the Judiciary Committee’s proposed amendment is not yet available.  Under this bill as it was introduced, it is unlawful for a person who repairs a motor vehicle whose inflatable restraint system has been damaged or deployed to fail to repair or replace the system so that it is fully operational.  Penalties are established for failure to comply.

LABOR, COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY

The full Labor, Commerce and Industry Committee did not meet this week.

MEDICAL, MILITARY, PUBLIC AND MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS

The full Medical, Military, Public and Municipal Affairs Committee did not meet this week.

WAYS AND MEANS

The full Ways and Means Committee did not meet this week.  It is anticipated that the full committee will meet on Tuesday, February 20 to receive subcommittee recommendations and begin full committee work on the 2001-02 State budget.   

BILLS INTRODUCED IN THE HOUSE

AGRICULTURE, NATURAL RESOURCES, AND

 ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS


H.3558 TRAPPING BIRDS OF PREY IN RABBIT RUNNING ENCLOSURES
Rep. Townsend
This bill adds birds of prey to the list of predators that may be lawfully trapped within enclosures used for running rabbits with dogs. 


H.3570 GOVERNING BOARD OF THE DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL

RESOURCES Rep. Bowers
This bill makes revisions regarding the Governing Board of the Department of Natural Resources so as to increase the number of board’s members from seven to nine and to establish districts for the selection of board members.

EDUCATION AND PUBLIC WORKS


S.112 SUMTER COUNTY ROAD CLOSING Sen. Leventis

This bill requires the State Department of Transportation to close permanently the southern access of Road 43-506 at the point where it intersects with Road 43-251 in Sumter County.


H.3529 AMENDMENTS TO S.C. TUITION PREPAYMENT 



 PROGRAM ACT Rep. Stille
For purposes of the South Carolina Tuition Prepayment Program Act, this bill amends the definition of “tuition” to mean registration or matriculation, credit-hour charges, and mandatory college fees, including athletic or activity, medical or infirmary and capital improvement fees, imposed by a public higher education institution in this State as a condition of enrollment of all full-time, undergraduate students regardless of class.” (The current definition for “tuition” is “the credit hour charges imposed by a public higher education institution in this State and all mandatory fees required as a condition of enrollment of all students.”)

The bill also clarifies that “tuition” does not include the expenses for student housing, meal plans, books, class or lab supplies and equipment, uniforms and laundry, transportation, course-specific fees, or any other fees or charges the program did not consider in determination of the annual contracting pricing structure.

The bill also provides that the Program’s funds, including any right of refund or any other right accrued by a person in the fund is exempt of contributions is exempt from legal process and is unassignable. 


H.3530 TEST PERFORMANCE UNDER EDUCATION

 ACCOUNTABILITY ACT Rep. Moody-Lawrence
This bill provides that if performance on a standardized test is considered as part of any decision about the overall performance of a school; or the promotion, retention, graduation, tracking, or within-class ability grouping of an individual student under the Education Accountability Act, such test performance shall not be the sole determinant in the decision and the test may not have determinative weight in the decision-making process.  The bill provides specific circumstances under which standardized tests may be considered in making these decisions.


H.3531 FUNDING FOR UNDER-PERFORMING STUDENTS UNDER THE 

 EDUCATION ACCOUNTABILITY ACT Rep. Moody-Lawrence
This bill requires that in allocating additional funding for under-performing students under the Education Accountability Act, school districts must allocate at least 25% of these funds to infrastructure resources designed to help these students.


H.3533 COMMISSIONER ON HIGHER EDUCATION Rep. Townsend
Under the Education Accountability Act, the Commissioner on Higher Education is currently required to submit an annual report to the Governor and to the General Assembly.  Included in that report is certain specified information from each four-year, post-secondary institution in the state.  This bill adds further information which must be submitted by these institutions for inclusion in the Commissioner’s annual report.  Specifically, this additional information includes: survey information from school districts obtained from the Department of Education pertaining to graduates from teacher preparation programs to include school district satisfaction ratings and graduates’ knowledge of their content and the South Carolina academic standards; ability to teach effectively to the state standards, and proficiency in assessing the progress of students toward meeting the state standards.  The bill also clarifies that the currently-required “appropriate information relating to each institution’s role and mission” shall include policies and procedures to ensure that academic programs support the economic development needs in the State by providing a technologically skilled workforce.


H.3534 EMPHASIS ON TEACHING AS A CAREER Rep. Townsend

This bill provides that South Carolina’s public colleges and universities with teacher education programs should make the preparation of teachers a fundamental part of the institution’s mission, and should allocate resources to support this mission and to support professional development programs for practicing teachers and teacher education faculties to include technology training.  Also, the bill provides that these institutions should give greater attention to attracting diversity in race and ethnicity in faculty and students; that all teacher education programs should strengthen alliances with K-12 education and with the business community, and critical workforce skills should be integrated into content and methods courses; and teacher education faculties should provide teacher candidates with a variety of effective teaching practices to ensure the state’s diverse student population achieve at high levels of learning.

H.3535 EDUCATION OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE REVIEW OF STATE/LOCAL

 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS Rep. Townsend

This bill requires that upon receipt of the Education Oversight Committee’s (EOC)  recommendations from the EOC’s review of state and local professional development, the State Department of Education (SDE) shall develop an accountability system to ensure that identified professional development standards are effectively implemented.  The bill further specifies actions which are required of the SDE as a part of such an accountability system.


H.3541 RESTRICTED DRIVER’S LICENSES Rep. J.E. Smith

This bill provides that current special driving restrictions for persons who are at least sixteen years old and less than seventeen years old may be waived or modified by the Department of Public Safety if the restricted licensee proves to the Department’s satisfaction that the restriction interferes with travel between the licensee’s home and church-related events.


H.3544 HANDICAPPED PARKING Rep. Miller

This bill requires that a placard issued to a handicapped person for purposes of parking free of charge, must have the person’s driver’s license number or special identification card number printed on it.


H.3548 USE OF CHILD RESTRAINT DEVICES Rep. Thompson

This bill deletes the current exemption from child-passenger restraint system requirements for use of a child-restraint device while feeding a child or for a child with “a medical problem or any distress.”  The bill provides an exemption from required use of such a device in a “medical emergency situation.”


H.3565 REQUIRED USE OF SAFETY BELTS Rep. Ott

This bill exempts newspaper carriers from the mandatory use of safety belts in motor vehicles.


H.3590 ALCOHOL-RESTRICTED DRIVER’S LICENSES Rep. White

This bill increases the fee for a temporary alcohol-restricted driver’s license from thirty dollars to one hundred dollars.  The bill requires that twenty-five dollars of the one hundred dollar fee must be retained by the Department of Public Safety (DPS) for supplying and maintaining vehicle videotaping equipment, and the remaining seventy-five dollars must be retained by DPS.  Currently, twenty-five dollars of the thirty dollar fee is retained by DPS for vehicle videotaping equipment and the remaining five dollars is retained by DPS for administrative costs associated with issuance of the temporary alcohol-restricted licenses.


H.3591 FEE FOR DRIVER’S LICENSE REINSTATEMENT Rep. White

This bill increases the fee for reinstatement of a driver’s license to one hundred dollars for each suspension on the driver’s record that has not been reinstated.  Currently, the fee is thirty dollars regardless of previous suspensions.  The bill also revises the distribution of the fee by providing that seventy dollars of the fee is credited to the Department of Public Safety (DPS), twenty-nine dollars is placed in the state general fund, and one dollar is credited to the “Keep South Carolina Beautiful Fund.”  Currently, twenty-nine dollars of the thirty dollar fee is placed in the state general fund and one dollar is credited to the “Keep South Carolina Beautiful Fund.”


H.3592 DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

 MEMBERS Rep. Rodgers

This bill provides that in a county that is divided among two or more Department of Transportation (DOT) districts, a county within that district shall not have a resident commissioner for more than two consecutive terms, and a resident commission member who completes a second consecutive term must be replaced by a person who resides in another county in the district.  Current law provides that a county divided among two or more DOT districts shall not have a resident commission member for more than one consecutive term.

JUDICIARY


S.75 JURY DUTY Sen. Leventis

Current law allows any woman having a child less than seven years of age of whom she has legal custody and the duty of care to be excused from jury duty.  The woman must furnish an affidavit to the clerk of court stating that she is unable to provide adequate care for the child while performing jury duty.  This bill expands this exemption to include any parent or legal guardian with legal custody and the duty of care of a child less than seven years of age.  Under this bill, the individual seeking the exemption must furnish an affidavit to the clerk of court stating that he or she is unable to provide adequate care for the child while performing jury duty and must be excused from jury duty.


S.207 SPEEDY DISPOSITION OF CIVIL CASES Sen. Holland

Act 418 of 2000 established a task force to study, make recommendations, and report to the General Assembly on the statutory and constitutional ramifications of various methods for improving and ensuring the speedy disposition of civil cases in circuit courts and magistrates courts.  Act 418 required the task force submit its report to the General Assembly no later than January 18, 2001 and specified that the task force would be dissolved at that time.  The task forced dissolved, but due to scheduling conflicts the task force did not have an opportunity to meet.  This joint resolution reestablishes the task force with the same members as were previously appointed by Act 418.


S.233 ACTIONS TO ESTABLISH PATERNITY Sen. McConnell

Under this bill, the presumed, inferred, or alleged legal father would be allowed to initiate an action to establish paternity.


S.235 VIDEOTAPING PUBLIC MEETINGS Sen. McConnell

Current law allows all or any part of a meeting of a public body to be recorded by any person in attendance by means of a tape recorder or any other means of sonic reproduction, except when a meeting is closed.  This bill would allow individuals to videotape the meeting.

H.3528 MULTIDISCIPLINARY TEAM REVIEWING RECORDS TO DETERMINE

 IF A PERSON IS A SEXUALLY VIOLENT PREDATOR Rep. Harrison

This bill relates to the membership on the multidisciplinary team reviewing records to determine if a person is a sexually violent predator.  Current law provides that the Chief Attorney of the Office of Appellate Defense or his or her designee shall serve on this team.  This bill deletes the provision relating to the Chief Attorney of the Office of Appellate Defense and provides instead that an attorney experienced in the practice of criminal law appointed from a list of candidates submitted by the President of the South Carolina Bar shall serve a term of one year.


H.3538 NAME CHANGES BY SEXUAL OFFENDERS Rep. Cooper

Under this bill, a person who is referred to as a sex offender is not allowed to change his or her name unless the change is incident to a change in marital status, or is necessary to effect the exercise of religion.  The bill also provides that the name change must be reported to the sheriff in the county in which the sex offender resides within thirty days of the effective date of the name change.


H.3539 "COMPUTER ABUSE ACT OF 2001"Rep. J.E. Smith

This bill enacts the Compute Abuse Act of 2001 and makes several technical corrections to the Computer Crimes Act.  In addition to other civil remedies available, under this bill the owner or lessee of a computer, computer system, computer network, computer program, or data may bring a civil action against a person convicted under this act for compensatory damages and restitution.  

The bill revises definitions for several terms used in the Computer Crimes Act; also, the bill defines the term “computer contaminant.”  Under this bill, the term computer contaminant means a computer program designed to modify, damage, destroy, disable, functionally impair, record, or transmit information within a computer, computer system, or computer network without the intent or permission of the owner of the information. Computer contaminant includes, but is not limited to, a group of computer programs commonly called viruses and worms that are self-replicating or self-propagating and are designed to contaminate other computer programs, consume computer resources, modify, destroy, record, or transmit data, or in some fashion usurp the normal operation of the computer, computer system, or computer network.  The bill makes it an offense to introduce a compute contaminant into a computer, computer system, computer program, or computer network.  


H.3540 LITTERING Rep. J.E. Smith

This bill allows a person who witnesses littering to swear out a warrant in the appropriate court to initiate prosecution of the offender.


H.3545 POLICE OFFICER SAFETY ZONE Rep. Littlejohn

Under this bill, the 'Police Officer Safety Zone' means the area that immediately surrounds a law enforcement vehicle traveling or parked along an interstate or four-lane highway whose blue light is activated.   This bill further provides that a motor vehicle traveling through a police officer safety zone must:  (1) not exceed the posted speed limit; (2) yield the right-of-way to a law enforcement vehicle; and (3) move to a lane away from the officer safety zone, if possible.  A driver of a motor vehicle who violates these provisions is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, must be fined one hundred dollars. 


H.3550 PENALTIES FOR DOMESTIC ABUSE Rep. J.H. Neal

Current law provides that any person who violates South Carolina Code of Laws §16-25-20 (criminal domestic violence against a person’s own household member) after having previously been convicted of (1) two violations of §16-25-20, or (2) two violations of South Carolina Code of Laws §16-25-65 (criminal domestic violence of a high and aggravated nature), or (3) a violation of §16-25-20 and a violation of §16-25-65 is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, must be fined not more than three thousand dollars or imprisoned not more than three years, or both.  This bill changes these penalties by requiring both a fine and imprisonment.   This bill establishes a five hundred dollar fine and requires imprisonment for not less than thirty days or more than five years.


H.3557 JUVENILE DELINQUENTS Rep. McGee

This bill relates to the commitment of juveniles to the Department of Juvenile Justice for delinquency.  The bill provides that a judge may order restitution in addition to commitment to the Department of Juvenile Justice.


H.3561 BAIL BONDSMEN Rep. Limehouse

Unless ordered by the court, this bill provides that it is unlawful for a bail bondsman to execute a bail bond and remove a defendant from custody without charging and collecting the full required premium on the bond as ordered by the court.  When it is determined that a defendant cannot be released from jail, for any reason, then under this bill the bail bondsman must return the premium within three business days.


H.3562 ANNEXATION BY MUNICIPALITIES Rep. Knotts

Under this bill, a municipality extending water or electric services to nonresidents would be prohibited from requiring annexation as a condition of the receipt of the services.


H.3564 ATTORNEYS’ FEES WHERE AN INSURER HAS REFUSED TO PAY A 

 CLAIM AND APPEALS FROM IT Rep. Law

This bill relates to liability for attorneys' fees where an insurer has refused to pay a claim and appeals from it.  The bill reduces from ninety to forty-five the number of days claims must be paid.  Also, the bill establishes a forty-five day requirement for payment when the parties have reached a settlement agreement regarding a claim against the insurer.


H.3568 FIREWORKS Rep. Kelley

This bill authorizes a county by ordinance to regulate or prohibit the discharge of otherwise lawful fireworks in parts of the county where because of population density or contiguity to municipalities, the public safety requires such regulation.


H.3596 ANNEXATION BY A MUNICIPALITY Rep. Harrison

Under this bill, the governing body of a municipality may annex by ordinance an area that is completely surrounded by the municipality.

LABOR, COMMERCE, AND INDUSTRY


H.3537 IMPLIED WARRANTY ON USED MOTOR VEHICLES Rep. M. Hines

This bill revises the Uniform Consumer Protection Code by providing that in every sale of a used motor vehicle to a consumer there is an implied warranty that the vehicle is fit for the purpose of providing reasonably reliable and safe transportation to the consumer.  The bill provides that a person engaged in the business of selling used motor vehicles who sells a vehicle “as is” may not disclaim the implied warranty that a motor vehicle offered for sale or sold to a consumer is fit for the purpose of providing reasonably reliable and safe transportation to the consumer.  The legislation provides for disclaiming the implied warranty, defects, and conditions in writing before the sale of the used motor vehicle.  Under the bill, a person engaged in the business of selling used motor vehicles is liable to a consumer who purchases the vehicle for actual damages arising from any breach of the implied warranty as well as for actual and punitive damages resulting from any misrepresentation, nondisclosure, or the practice of any deception relating to defects, conditions, and fitness of the used motor vehicle for the purpose of providing reasonably reliable and safe transportation.


H.3543 “SOUTH CAROLINA ELECTRIC POWER ACT” Rep. Sandifer

This bill, enacting the “South Carolina Electric Power Act,” has been introduced as a skeleton bill, with all legislative detail to be added at a future date.


H.3549 STATE EMPLOYEE PAY DEDUCTION FOR PREPAID LEGAL

INSURANCE PREMIUMS Rep. Cato
This bill revises the list of optional deductions for insurance premiums that are authorized to be taken from a State employee’s compensation so as to include premiums for prepaid legal insurance.


H.3553 “POSTMARK PROMPT PAYMENT ACT” Rep. Simrill

This bill revises provisions governing payments on loans, credit card accounts, and other specified financial transactions so as to provide that, if any payment required to be made on or before a prescribed date is delivered after that date by the United States Postal Service to the payee, the payment is deemed to have been received by the payee on the date of the Postal Service’s postmark stamped on the envelope or other cover in which the payment is mailed.  Exceptions are provided. 


H.3560 “SOUTH CAROLINA VACATION RENTAL ACT” Rep. Edge

This bill enacts the “South Carolina Vacation Rental Act” so as to regulate the business of rental management of vacation time rental property. The bill provides for the status of vacation rentals on transferred property.  The legislation prohibits a county or municipality from banning vacation rentals except pursuant to specific authorization for such bans enacted by the General Assembly by general law.  The bill provides that a tenant in possession of property under a vacation rental is subject to a mandatory evacuation order.  The legislation provides definitions and exceptions with regard to this regulation.


H.3569 WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE RATES FOR NEW

 BUSINESSES Rep. Bowers
This bill provides that when a newly formed business applies for workers’ compensation insurance, the insurer must offer the insurance to the new business at the lowest rate for which workers’ compensation insurance for a business of its type and within its classification is written.  The new business is entitled to continue the insurance and to renew the insurance at the same rate until its claims experience justifies an increase in the rates charged for the insurance.


H.3580 FORFEITURE OF SAFE DRIVER DISCOUNT Rep. Bowers

This bill revises automobile insurance provisions so as to provide that no driver who has been granted a safe driver discount shall forfeit that discount for up to four merit rating points for automobile insurance purposes. 


H.3589 TELEPHONE SOLICITATIONS Rep. J. Young

This bill provides for the “Do Not Call Registry” authorizing the Department of Consumer Affairs to establish a database of residential telephone subscribers who object to receiving certain telephone solicitations.  The bill provides for the operation of the database by the department and for fees to be charged to residential telephone subscribers who apply to be included in the database and to persons or entities accessing the database.  The bill provides for civil penalties for telephone solicitors who call telephone numbers on the registry more than once in a twelve‑month period.  The bill provides for a statute of limitations.  Under the bill, telephone caller identification services are not liable for violations of these provisions.  Telephone companies are not responsible for the enforcement of the legislation or liable for errors or omissions in the database.  The bill revises the list of matters exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act, so as to add the database.


H.3595 CREDIT CARD SOLICITATIONS AT INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER

 LEARNING Rep. Thompson
This bill provides for specific restrictions on the distribution of applications and advertising and any other form of solicitation for ownership of a seller credit card or a lender credit card by a credit card issuer on the campus of a public institution of higher learning in the state.

MEDICAL, MILITARY, PUBLIC AND MUNICIPAL AFFAIRS


H.3552 IN-STATE LICENSURE FOR CANADIAN NURSES Rep. Simrill

This bill establishes conditions under which a nurse educated and licensed in Canada may become licensed to practice in South Carolina without an examination.


H.3587 CRIMINAL RECORD CHECKS FOR NURSING PERSONNEL

Rep. Cooper
This bill prohibits hospitals, nursing homes, residential care facilities, and home health care agencies from employing a person who has a criminal record, to authorize an applicant to obtain a fingerprint‑based criminal background check if the record check indicates the person has a criminal record, and to provide immunity from liability for the law enforcement agency conducting the criminal record check and the facilities or agencies which take employment action based on the record check.  The bill requires a person seeking certification as a nursing assistant by the Department of Health and Human Services to submit a criminal record check as a condition of certification.  The bill requires individuals applying for licensure of registered nurses and licensed practical nurses to obtain a criminal record check as a condition of licensure and of issuance of a reciprocal license.  The bill revises provisions regarding reports of adult abuse, neglect, and exploitation, so as to require an investigative entity receiving such a report to also report this information to the Attorney General.  The bill exempts from the requirements of this legislation registered nurses, licensed practical nurses, and nursing assistants employed in a hospital, nursing home, residential care facility, or home health agency on this act’s effective date and to require compliance if subsequently the person is not employed by one of these facilities or agencies for one year.

WAYS AND MEANS


H.3532 FOOD TAX EXEMPTION Rep. Kirsh

This bill exempts food items eligible for purchase with U.S. Department of Agriculture food coupons from local option sales tax, capital project sales tax, personal property tax exemption sales tax, and the transportation infrastructure sales tax.


H.3536 S.C. STATE PORTS AUTHORITY Rep. Bowers

This joint resolution provides that before the S.C. Ports Authority may expand its terminal facilities or establish a new terminal facility, the plan of expansion including the terminal facility location, its financing, and how that expansion or addition interacts with existing facilities in an overall master plan must be submitted to the General Assembly and then approved by joint resolution of the General Assembly.


S.220 SETOFF OF DEBT AGAINST TAXPAYER’S REFUND Sen. Leatherman

This joint resolution provides that notwithstanding the appeals procedure provided in the Setoff Debt Collection Act, the appeal procedure for actions of the IRS in connection with debt setoffs is governed by Title 26 of the United States Code (the Internal Revenue Code).  The bill provides that this provision applies to the 2001 filing period for individual income taxes.


H.3542 LAPSED FUNDS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION Rep. Allison

This bill provides that any lapsed funds of the Department of Education for fiscal year 2000-01 and prior years must be used in the following manner, in priority order:  to offset an official EIA revenue shortfall declared by the Board of Economic Advisors; to fund any school district’s appropriation deficit in EIA teacher salary supplement, teacher salary supplement fringe, or National Board Certification Incentives.  The bill provides that the remaining lapsed funds must be used in accordance with S.C. Code of Laws §59-21-420, relating to funds for renovation, capital improvements, or repair of classrooms, etc., or reduction of millage as to bonds. The bill also provides that in the event an official EIA revenue shortfall is declared, funds appropriated for EIA teacher salaries and related fringe benefits in the 2000-01 general appropriations act are exempt from any reduction required to offset the shortfall.


H.3551 MARRIED INDIVIDUALS FILING A JOINT RETURN Rep. Simrill

This bill provides that if one spouse does not work outside the home and has no earned income, the requirement that the income of that spouse be earned for purposes of the two wage earner credit for married individuals does not apply and any taxable income of that spouse qualifies for purposes of determining this credit.


S.158 COMPLIANCE WITH SELECTIVE SERVICE ACT Sen. Moore

This bill, the companion bill to H.3426, prohibits a male eighteen years of age or older from obtaining state government employment or employment with a political subdivision of the state unless the person is in compliance with the Federal Military Selective Service Act.  

The bill also prohibits an individual from receiving a loan, grant, scholarship, or other financial assistance funded by state revenue, or from receiving a student loan guaranteed by this state, unless the individual files a statement of the individual’s selective service status as provided in the bill.  The bill provides exceptions to this prohibition and requires the Commission on Higher Education to promulgate regulations to implement and administer this provision.


H.3563 TAX ON FIRE INSURANCE PREMIUMS Rep. Quinn

This bill makes permanent the additional tax of thirty-five one-hundredths percent on fire insurance premiums which was previously dedicated to the repayment of interest and principal on capital improvement bonds authorized for the construction of the Fire Academy.  The bill provides that after the debt service is no longer needed and the bonds are retired, the revenues from this tax will be retained by the Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation for use by its Division of Fire and Life Safety for capital improvements, division expenses, and public education.  Current provisions stipulate that the additional tax is imposed only so long as any of the bonds remain outstanding, and any remaining balance in the special fund after the bonds are retired is transferred to the General Fund.


H.3571 PROPERTY TAX ASSESSMENT Rep. Bowers

This bill provides that multi-unit residential real property containing four units or less which each unit occupant occupies as his principal residence on a rental or ownership basis shall be taxed on an assessment equal to four percent of the fair market value of such property, rather than the current six percent assessment.


H.3572 PROPERTY TAX ASSESSMENT Rep. Bowers

This bill provides that residential property occupied by a rental-occupant as his principal residence on the same basis as an owner-occupant, except for the fact that ownership is vested in another person, qualifies for the four percent assessment ratio for ad valorem tax purposes.


H.3573 S.C. ACADEMIC ENDOWMENT INCENTIVE ACT Rep. Bowers

For purposes of eligibility for matching state funds for endowment gifts, this bill revises the S.C. Academic Endowment Incentive Act’s definition of “qualifying college or university” to include two-year educational institutions, including college or university regional campuses.


H.3574 TAX INCENTIVES FOR NEW BUSINESS Rep. Bowers

This bill provides that a business which begins operating in this State after July 1, 2001, or had been in operation less than twelve months before that date, and has not or does not qualify for any other incentives available pursuant to any other economic development act provided in this state, is entitled to:

An income tax credit for the first five years of operation in an amount equal to the Social Security taxes paid by the business on its employees’ wages;

A property tax exemption for the first five years of its operation for personal property owned by the business.


H.3575 TAX INCENTIVE FOR NEW BUSINESS Rep. Bowers

This bill provides that a business which begins operating in this State after July 1, 2001, or had been in operation less than twelve months before that date, and has not or does not qualify for any other incentives available pursuant to any other economic development act provided in this state, may claim an income tax credit for the first five years of its operation in an amount equal to the Social Security taxes paid by the business on its employees’ wages.


H.3576 TAX INCENTIVE FOR NEW BUSINESS Rep. Bowers

This bill provides that a business which begins operating in this State after July 1, 2001, or had been in operation less than twelve months before that date, and has not or does not qualify for any other incentives available pursuant to any other economic development act provided in this state, is entitled to a property tax exemption for the first five years of its operation for personal property owned by the business.


H.3577 TAX ASSESSMENT RATIO FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY OWNED BY 

 MEMBERS OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY Rep. Bowers
This bill provides that all dwellings owned by a member of the General Assembly located in a county in which any portion of the member’s electoral district is located, whether or not the dwelling actually is occupied by the member, qualify for the four percent assessment ratio if the dwelling is not held for the production of income.


H.3578 TAX ASSESSMENT RATIO FOR SECONDARY

 RESIDENCES Rep. Bowers

This bill extends the four percent assessment ratio allowed for a legal residence to a secondary residence, and extends the homestead exemption for taxpayers over age sixty-five or disabled to a secondary residence if the taxpayer otherwise qualifies for the exemption.


H.3579 PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION Rep. Bowers

This bill provides a property tax exemption on residential property consisting of four or fewer units in amounts of fair market value sufficient to equal an assessment ratio of four percent.  The bill also extends the residential exemption from school operating millage to such property.  To reimburse local taxing entities for property taxes not collected because of this exemption, the bill establishes the Residential Property Tax Relief Trust Fund.  The bill requires that the Board of Economic Advisors annual remove from its estimated revenue projection for the succeeding fiscal year an amount equal to fifteen percent of the projected year-to-year general fund growth plus the total of all amounts previously credited to the trust fund, but not more than the total residential property base payment.  The bill provides that this amount is automatically credited to the trust fund for the applicable fiscal year and is not available for appropriation.

The bill requires that the county auditor calculate and prescribe a percentage reduction in the fair market value on each residential property tax bill falling due in the applicable fiscal year, reducing liabilities first in amounts required to equal a four percent assessment ratio on the property, and second, in amounts required to extend the residential exemption from school operating millage to such property.

The bill also provides that property exempted from property taxes under the provisions of this bill is considered taxable property for purposes of bonded indebtedness and the index of taxpaying ability.


H.3581 FEE IN LIEU OF PROPERTY TAX ON CARS Rep. Bowers

This bill requires the Department of Revenue to establish, by using a millage rate based on the statewide average millage rate, a uniform fee to be imposed instead of property tax for cars and light trucks.


H.3582 DEFERRED PRESENTMENT SERVICE Rep. Bowers

This bill exempts grocery stores and drug stores from the application of statutory provisions regulating deferred presentment services,  and provides that a grocery store or drug store which has paid a licensing or investigation fee under these provisions is entitled to a refund of all sums paid.  “Deferred presentment services” means a transaction pursuant to a written agreement involving the following combination of activities in exchange for a fee:  accepting a check dated on the date it was written; holding the check for a period of time before presentment for payment or deposit.


H.3585 STATE PERSONNEL POLICIES, GUIDELINES,



 AND PROCEDURES Rep. Kelley
This concurrent resolution provides that it is the view of the General Assembly that state personnel policies, guidelines, or procedures established by the State Budget and Control Board should be promulgated as regulations in conformity with the Administrative Procedures Act when the policies extend to state employees not employed by the State Budget and Control Board.


H.3586 EXEMPTIONS FROM ADMISSIONS TAX Rep. Harrell

This bill exempts from the admissions tax physical fitness facilities of the State and any of its political subdivisions in the same manner that private physical fitness centers are exempted under the Physical Fitness Services Act. 


H.3593 L0CAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 PLANNING PROCESS Rep. Rodgers
Under the S.C. Local Government Comprehensive Planning Enabling Act (the Act), a “local planning commission” is defined as a municipal planning commission, a county planning commission, a joint city-county planning commission, or a consolidated government planning commission.  The Act requires local planning commissions to develop and maintain a planning process which will result in the systematic preparation and continual re-evaluation and updating of those elements considered critical, necessary, and desirable to guide the development and redevelopment of its area of jurisdiction.

This bill adds to the elements which must be included in a local comprehensive plan, a long range financial plan covering a minimum of five future years which must be updated at least every second year.  The bill requires that this financial plan must include capital cost of all proposed government facilities and infrastructure, estimated cost of operations, tax revenues and other income sources, bond funding and retirement plans, estimated growth of the tax base and increases in tax millage which would be required.


H.3594 SALES TAX ON LEASED MOTOR VEHICLE Rep. Rodgers

This bill provides that a sales tax is due on a leased motor vehicle only if the vehicle is purchased at the end or during the term of the lease.  The bill further provides that the sales tax due at the time of purchase is determined at the total tax rate required by law as applied to the buy-out amount of the lease, up to a maximum amount of three hundred dollars.
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